NATIONS CERD

D str.

International Convention on GENERAL

the Elimination

CERD CJ SR 1242
of all Forms of 10 Decenber 1997
Racial Discrimination

ENGLI SH
Oiginal: FRENCH

COW TTEE ON THE ELI M NATI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON
Fifty-first session
SUMVARY RECORD OF THE FI RST PART* OF THE 1242nd MEETI NG

Hel d at the Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva,
on Thursday, 21 August 1997, at 3 p.m

Chairnman: M. BANTON

CONTENTS

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPCRTS, COWMMENTS AND | NFCRVATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON ( conti nued)

Draft concl udi ng observations concerning the twelfth to fourteenth
periodic reports of Norway

Draft concl udi ng observations concerning the sixth to el eventh periodic
reports of Burkina Faso

*  The sunmmary record of the second part of the neeting appears as
docunment CERD CJ SR 1242/ Add. 1.

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a menmorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Commttee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 97-18078 (E)



CERD J SR 1242
page 2

CONTENTS ( conti nued )

Draft concl udi ng observations concerning the seventh to tenth periodic

reports of Burundi

Revi ew of the inplenentation of the Convention in States parties whose

reports are excessively overdue (continued)

Suri nane
Quyana

PREVENTI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON, | NCLUDI NG EARLY WARNI NG AND URGENT
PROCEDURES ( continued)

Papua New Qui hea




CERDY T SR 1242
page 3

The neeting was called to order at 3 p.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COMVENTS AND | NFORVATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (agenda item5) ( conti nued)

Draft concluding observations concerning the twelfth to fourteenth periodic
reports of Norway (in-session docunent, in English only: CERD 51/Msc.31 -
future CERD ¢J 304/ Add. 40 - future CERD U 51/ CRP. 1/ Add. 24)

Paragraphs 1 and 2

1. Paragraphs 1 and 2 were adopted
Par agraph 3
2. The CHAI RVAN asked the Commttee whether it could agree to replace the

phrase “nomi nating nenbers of a jury anong foreigners residing in Norway”
towards the end of the second sentence, by the phrase “including resident
foreigners in a jury”.

3. It was so decided .

4, Par agraph 3, as anended, was adopt ed

Par agraphs 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8

5. Paragraphs 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8 were adopted on the understanding that the
article “the” would be inserted before the word “culture” in the first |line of

paragraph 5 .

Par agraph 9

6. M. RECHETOV said that he would prefer the word “very” in the second
line of the paragraph to be del eted.

7. Paragraph 9, as anended, was adopt ed

Par agraphs 10, 11 and 12

8. Par agraphs 10, 11 and 12 were adopt ed

Par agr aph 13

9. M. RECHETOV , answering a question from M. SHERFIS, said that it would
i ndeed be rather inadvisable to encourage the party referred to in the

penultimate line of the paragraph in the belief that it was a nmajor party.
Accordingly, it would be better to delete the adjective “najor”.

10. Paragraph 13, as anended, was adopt ed




CERD U SR 1242
page 4

Par agr aph 14

11. M. RECHETOV agreed with M. SHERFIS and M. WIFRUM that it was
inmportant to identify clearly the | eader of the political party referred to in
paragraph 14, who wanted the Sam parlianment to be dissolved, since that
person's notivations obviously had nothing in common with the fears of a
nmenber of the Commttee that such an institution mght |ead to segregation of
the Sam. He therefore suggested replacing “a [political party]” by “the
above-nentioned [political party]” in the third line of the paragraph.

12. Par agraph 14, as anended, was adopt ed

Par agr aph 15

13. M. ABOUL-NASR said that it would be unwise to refer to foreigners and
persons belonging to mnority groups in the same terns in paragraph 15 since,
whi | e persons belonging to mnority groups actually had the same rights,
including the right to work, as other citizens of a country, that was not the
case for foreign nationals, as energed fromthe analysis of article 1,
paragraph 2, of the Convention and the interpretation of the right to work

gi ven by nmany countries.

14, M. RECHETOV , supported by M. WA FRUM, said he did not share that view
but was prepared not to speak of “rights”, as long as the notion of protection
was retained, and to replace the last part of the sentence with the words
“especially in the area of enpl oynment and housing”.

15. M. AHVADU proposed adding the words “and health” in view of the clains
that immgrants of African origin were subjected to AIDS tests. |If that
proposal was not accepted, the Conmittee mght consider drafting a

paragraph 15 bis dealing specifically with that question.

16. M. RECHETOV said that he favoured a separate paragraph since there
appeared to be nothing, apart fromsuch discrimnatory treatnent, to justify
including the situation with regard to health of foreign nationals and nenbers
of mnority groups in Norway anong the “Principal subjects of concern”.

17. The CHAI RVAN suggested that the Committee should revert to that question
in a paragraph 15 bis of its draft concludi ng observati ons.

18. It was so decided .

19. Par agraph 15 was adopted with the anendnent proposed by M. Rechetov

Par agraph 15 bi s (new paragraph 16)

20. M. AHVADU and M. WO FRUM proposed a new paragraph, which woul d read:

“Concern is al so expressed over the reported allegations of the
State party's Health Services that immgrants of African descent are
generally tested for AIDS.”



CERDY T SR 1242
page 5

21. The CHAI RMAN , speaking as a nmenber of the Conmittee, said that he coul d
not accept that text.

22. M. WIFRUM explained that the term*“allegations” was intended to refer
to reports that the Norwegi an health services had described one group of
immgrants as presenting a greater risk than others.

23. The CHAI RVAN , speaking as a menber of the Committee, said that as far as
he knew such runours had ori gi nated from newspaper articles in which
statistical data concerning various groups had been severely distorted.

24. M. ABQUL-NASR observed that the Commttee had on previ ous occasi ons,
based its concl usions on reports concerning nuch | ess serious cases in which a
group had been treated unfairly. He recalled that the Organization of African
Unity had received nunerous conpl aints fromindividuals required to undergo
AIDS testing nerely on account of being Africans. Those conplaints confirned
the information published in the press. Furthernore, it was perfectly natural
that the Coomttee, having already voiced its concerns orally during the

consi deration of Norway's periodic report, should express those concerns in
witing so as to bring themto the attention of the State party.

25. M. SHERIFIS said that it was inportant to specify the source of the
al | egati ons.

26. M. WOFRUM said that the two main aspects of the problemwere, first,
the allegations nmade publicly by the national health services and, secondly,
the fact that those services obliged all African inmgrants to submt to tests
for HV. Regardless of the source of the information, there had been a
flagrant act of discrimnation based on national origin, and the Conmmttee had
to take a stand on the matter.

27. The CHAI RVAN suggested anendi ng the text proposed by M. Ahnadu and
M. Wlfrumto read:

“The Comm ttee expresses concern over reports that Africans have
been obliged to submt to tests for HV just because they are Africans.”

28. M. ABQUL-NASR added that sonme European countries required Africans
wishing to enter their territory to be in possession of certificates proving
that they were HV negative. That, too, was a discrimnatory requirenent.

29. M. GARVALOV proposed a text which woul d read:

“The Committee is concerned that the State party's Health Services
all eged that immgrants of African descent generally disproportionately
test positively for HV.”

30. M. WO FRUM proposed that the sentence read out by M. Garval ov shoul d
be inserted before the text suggested by the Chairman.

31. Par agraph 15 bis (new paragraph 16), as drafted, was adopted




CERD CJ SR 1242
page 6

Par agraphs 16, 17, 18, 19, 20 and 21 (new paragraphs 17, 18, 19, 20, 21
and 22)

32. Par agraphs 16, 17, 18, 19, 20 and 21 (new paragraphs 17, 18, 19, 20, 21

and 22) were adopted

Par agr aph 22 (new par agraph 23)

33. M. RECHETOV proposed that, for the sake of consistency, the suggestion
of M. YUTZIS to insert the words “enpl oyment and” before the word “housi ng”
in the second |ine of the paragraph shoul d be retained.

34. Par agr aph 22 (new paragraph 23), as anended, was adopt ed

Par agr aphs 23 and 24 (new paragraphs 24 and 25)

35. Par agraphs 23 and 24 (new paragraphs 24 and 25) were adopted

36. The Committee's draft concludi ng observations concerning the twelfth to

fourteenth periodic reports of Norway, as orally anended, were adopted

Draft concl udi ng observations concerning the sixth to el eventh periodic
reports of Burkina Faso (in-session docunent, in English only:
CERD ¢ 51/ M sc. 40 - future CERD ¢J 304/ Add. 41 - future CERD ¢ 51/ CRP. 1/ Add. 26)

Paragraphs 1 and 2

37. Par agraphs 1 and 2 were adopted

Par agraph 3

38. M. YUTZIS said he wondered whether the words “may affect” were not too
weak.

39. M. DIACONU replied that the wording was justified i nasmuch as the
Committee did not have sufficient information to determi ne to what extent
the econom ¢ situation mght have contributed to racial discrimnation.

40. Par agraph 3 was adopt ed

Par agraphs 4 and 5

41. Par agraphs 4 and 5 were adopt ed

Par agraph 6

42. The CHAI RMAN suggested that the words “of any kind” should be repl aced
by the words “on any grounds”.

43. Par agraph 6, as anended, was adopt ed




CERDY U SR 1242
page 7

Par agraph 7

44, Par agraph 7 was adopt ed

Par agraph 8

45. The CHAIRVMAN said that, in the first line, he would prefer the wording
“use of and instruction in”.

46. Par agraph 8, as anended, was adopt ed
Par agraph 9
47, Par agraph 9 was adopted on the understandi ng that the word “by” woul d be

inserted after the word “conplaints”

Par agr aph 10

48. Par agraph 10 was adopted on the understanding that the word “the” would

be inserted between the words “of” and “legal”

Par agraphs 11 and 12

49. Par agraphs 11 and 12 were adopt ed

Par agr aph 13

50. The CHAI RVAN suggested deleting the word “also” in the first line

51. Paragraph 13, as anended, was adopt ed

Par agr aph 14

52. M. ABOUL-NASR said that preparing the statistics requested m ght
i nvol ve excessi ve expenditure for the country.

53. M. DIACONU proposed that, instead of asking for statistical data, the
Comm ttee should request the information called for in paragraph 8 of the
reporting guidelines.

54. M. SHERIFIS proposed that the word “all” in the second Iine should be
repl aced by the word “various”, which was | ess exacting, and that a simlar
change shoul d be nmade in the second |ine of paragraph 11

55. The CHAI RVAN suggested that the text of the paragraph, after the words
“its next report”, should be redrafted to read “information in accordance with
paragraph 8 of the reporting guidelines and on the representation of ethnic
groups at various levels of public life, as well as on their enjoynent of
econom ¢, social and cultural rights”.

56. It was so decided .

57. Par agraph 14, as anended, was adopt ed




CERD CJ SR 1242
page 8

58. The suggestion of M. Sherifis concerning paradraph 11 was adopt ed

Par agr aph 15

59. Par agraph 15 was adopted with one m nor drafting change

Par agr aph 16

60. The CHAI RVAN suggested replacing the word “attributions”, to which
M. SHAH objected, by the word “powers”

61. Par agraph 16 was adopted with that anendnent

Par agr aph 17

62. Par agraph 17 was adopt ed

Par agr aph 18

63. M. ABOQUL-NASR said it should be nade clear that the declaration
provided for in article 14 of the Convention was optional. Furthernore, there
was not hing to suggest that the State party had never considered nmaki ng such a
declaration and it would thus be nmore appropriate to use the word

“reconsi dered” instead of the word “considered”.

64. The CHAIRVAN said that those two points woul d be taken into account in
future.

65. Par agraph 18, as anended, was adopt ed

Par agr aph 19

66. Par agraph 19 was adopt ed

67. The Committee's draft concludi ng observations concerning the sixth to

el eventh periodic reports of Burkina Faso, as orally anended, were adopted

Draft concl udi ng observations concerning the seventh to tenth periodic reports

of Burundi (in-session docunent, in English only: CERD CU51/Msc.42 - future
CERD U/ 304/ Add. 42 - future CERD U 51/ CRP. 1/ Add. 23)

Paragraph 1

68. Par agraph 1 was adopt ed

Par agraph 2

69. M. DIACONU proposed that the words “and on the actual enjoynent by the
popul ation of its rights” should be del eted.

70. Par agraph 2, as anended, was adopt ed




CERDY T SR 1242
page 9

Par agraph 3

71. M. D ACONU proposed that the words “and fl ows of refugees” shoul d be
inserted after the words “the massive displacenents of popul ations”.

72. Par agraph 3, as anended, was adopt ed

Par agraph 4

73. Par agraph 4 was adopt ed

Par agraph 5

74. M. SHAH indicated that the International Herald Tribune newspaper had
recently reported a statement by the President of Burundi to the effect that
peace tal ks ained at national reconciliation would be held in Septenber in the
United Republic of Tanzania. He therefore proposed replacing the text of
paragraph 5 with a new text in which the Coomittee woul d wel come the hol di ng

of those negoti ati ons.

75. M. ABQUL-NASR said he doubted the appropriateness of wel comng a
statenment that had not been confirned by the del egation of Burundi.

76. M. SHAH pointed out that he had referred to the statenent in the
presence of the Burundi an del egation, which had not denied it. In addition,
the del egati on had stated categorically that proceedi ngs woul d be taken

agai nst persons suspected of having commtted hurman rights violations.

77. After a discussion in which M. WOFRUM, M. van BOVEN, M. AHMADU and
M. SHAH took part, M. SHAH proposed that paragraph 5 should read: “The
Comm ttee wel comes the declared willingness of the State party to restore

peace and security in Burundi through a political dialogue to be held in
Septenber 1997 in the United Republic of Tanzania, which, hopefully, could
produce a government satisfactory to all sides. The declared policy of the
CGovernnent to end inpunity for perpetrators of human rights violations is also
wel conred. ”

78. It was so decided .

79. Paragraph 5, as anmended, was adopt ed

Par agraphs 6 and 7

80. Par agraphs 6 and 7 were adopt ed

Par agraph 8

81. M. DIACONU proposed that the paragraph shoul d be del et ed.

82. Par agraph 8 was del et ed




CERD CJ SR 1242
page 10

Par agr aph 9 (new par agr aph 8)

83. M. de GQQUITES proposed the deletion of the words “one or nore”.

84. M. ABOJL-NASR proposed inserting the word “oral” before the word
“invitation”.

85. Par agraph 9 (new paragraph 8), as anended, was adopt ed

First paragraph of section D (new paragraph 9)

86. M. WIFRUM read out a new paragraph proposed by M. D aconu, which

woul d be inserted at the begi nning of section D and would read: “The nmain
concern of the Conmittee is with the continuation of acts of viol ence and
killings between persons of different ethnic background in Burundi”.

87. New paragraph 9 was adopt ed

Par agr aph 10

88. Par agraph 10 was adopt ed

Par agraph 11

89. M. WO FRUM suggested, at the request of M. van Boven, that the words
“its concludi ng observations of 17 March 1994” should be inserted at the end
of the first line.

90. Paragraph 11, as anended, was adopt ed

Par agr aph 12

91. Par agraph 12 was adopt ed

Par agr aph 13

92. M. ABOUL-NASR proposed the del etion of paragraph 13.

93. M. WO FRUM recogni zed that the request for information on the
representation of menbers of the Tutsi, Hutu and Twa ethnic groups could be
transferred to paragraph 22 and that paragraph 13 could then be del et ed.

94. It was so decided .

Par agr aph 14 (new par agr aph 13)

95. The CHAI RVAN proposed that the paragraph should be supplenented with a
sentence reading: “The Committee calls the State party's attention to its
general recomrendation Xl X (47)”.

96. Par agraph 14 (new paragraph 13), as anended, was adopt ed




CERD U SR 1242
page 11

Par agr aph 15 (new par agr aph 14)

97. Fol | owi ng a di scussi on in which M. WODFRUM, M. AHMADU, M. YUTZIS,

M. SHERIFIS and M. D ACONU took part, the CHAl RVAN suggested that the
par agr aph shoul d read:

“Concern is expressed over reports of delay in the process
of prosecuting those responsible for the assassinati on of
Presi dent Ndadaye. The Conmttee is equally concerned over the slow
process of prosecuting and puni shing perpetrators of nass killings and
di sappearances. The del ays cast doubt upon the effective inplenentation
of the Governnent's policy of ending the pattern of inpunity.”

98. Par agr aph 15 (new paragraph 14), as anended, was adopt ed

Par agraph 16 (new par agr aph 15)

99. M. WO FRUM suggested, at the request of M. D aconu, the insertion
of the word “fully” in the first line of the paragraph before the word
“inpl ement”.

100. It was so decided .

101. Par agraph 16 (new paragraph 15), as anended, was adopt ed

Par agraph 17 (new par agr aph 16)

102. M. SHERIFIS proposed that the words “each and all” shoul d be repl aced
by the words “the various” in the first line.

103. Par agraph 17 (new paragraph 16), as anended, was adopt ed

Par agr aph 18 (new par agraph 17)

104. The CHAI RMAN suggested anendi ng the begi nning of the paragraph to read:
“The insufficiency of the information received ...".

105. M. AHVADU proposed that the words “those canps” shoul d be repl aced by
the words “the canps” in the second |ine of the paragraph.

106. Par agraph 18 (new paragraph 17), as anended, was adopt ed

Par agraph 19 (new par agr aph 18)

107. Par agraph 19 (new paragraph 18) was adopt ed

Par agr aph 20 (new par agraph 19)

108. M. WO FRUM suggested, at the request of M. D aconu, that the words
“to the courts” should be deleted in the fourth [ine and that two commas



CERD U SR 1242
page 12

shoul d be inserted in the following line, which would thus read “the
publicity given to, and the effectiveness of, available remedies ..

109. Par agr aph 20 (new paragraph 19), as anended, was adopt ed

Par agr aph 21 (new par agr aph 20)

110. Par agraph 21 (new paragraph 20) was adopt ed

Par agr aph 22 (new par agraph 21)

111. M. WO FRW confirnmed, at the request of M. Sherifis, that the
par agraph reproduced in part the recomrendations nade by the Coomttee in its
decision 1 (47) of 16 August 1995.

112. M. ABOUL-NASR said he thought that the reconmendati ons were
unrealistic

113. M. WO FRUW pointed out that the wordi ng reproduced the text of a

deci sion that had been adopted by consensus. |f those recomendati ons

remai ned valid, the Conmttee should keep to themor el se del ete the whol e of
par agr aph 22.

114, M. YUTZIS and M. van BOVEN said that the paragraph shoul d be retained
even if the recommendations could be inplenented only in the very long term

115. M. DI ACONU proposed, by way of a conprom se, that the paragraph in
question should read: “The Conmttee reiterates the recomrendati ons made in
its decision 1 (47) of 16 August 1995 and, while recognizing that the process
may be | engthy, expresses its firmconviction that a durable solution makes it
necessary to take theminto account.”

116. M. WO FRUM proposed, for his part, that the beginning of the paragraph
shoul d be del eted and anot her sentence added at the end. The paragraph woul d
thus read: “The Commttee recomrends that the next periodic report provide
informati on on the representati on of nmenbers of the Tutsi, Hutu and Twa ethnic
groups in the Governnent, the admnistration, the judiciary, the police and
the arny. It further recomrends that the Covernment, while restructuring the
country, take decision 1 (47) of 16 August 1995 into consideration.”

117. M. van BOVEN said he could accept the text proposed by M. Wl frum
provided that it enunerated, at the end, the three decisions taken previously
by the Comm ttee concerning Burundi, as in paragraph 11

118. M. ABOUL-NASR said that he could al so accept M. Wl frum s proposal
but wi shed to point out that States parties to the Convention nust all be
treated alike and that the situation under consideration was not peculiar to
Bur undi .

119. The CHAI RMAN suggested that the wording proposed by M. Wl frumfor
par agraph 22 shoul d be adopted, with the end of the second sentence anended




CERDY T SR 1242
page 13

to read: “and take into consideration the Commttee' s concl udi ng observations
of 17 March 1994, its decision 1 (47) of 1995 and its resolution 1 (49)
of 1996”.

120. It was so deci ded

121. Par agr aph 22 (new paragraph 21), as anended, was adopt ed

Par agr aph 23 (new par agr aph 22)

122. Par agraph 23 (new paragraph 22) was adopt ed

Par agr aph 24 (new par agr aph 23)

123. M. WO FRUM proposed deleting the words “and apartheid” in the |ast
l'ine.

124. Par agr aph 24 (new paragraph 23), as anended, was adopt ed

Par agr aph 25 (new par agr aph 24)

125. Par agraph 25 (new paragraph 24) was adopted with one mnor drafting
change .

Par agr aph 26 (new par agr aph 25)

126. Par agraph 26 (new paragraph 25) was adopt ed

Par agr aph 27 (new par agr aph 26)

127. Par agraph 27 (new paragraph 26) was adopted with one mnor drafting
change .

Par agr aph 28 (new par agr aph 27)

128. Par agraph 28 (new paragraph 27) was adopt ed

Par agr aph 29 (new par agr aph 28)

129. M. WO FRU proposed, at the Chairnman's suggestion, that the paragraph
shoul d be anmended to read: “The Committee al so requests that information on

neasures taken to ensure the safe repatriation of refugees to Burundi, as well
as on the measures taken to protect refugees living in Burundi from viol ence,
be provided in the State party's next periodic report.”

130. M. SHERIFIS said that the proposed wording was not very felicitous.




CERD U SR 1242
page 14

131. The CHAI RMAN suggested that the paragraph should read: “The Committee
al so requests information in the next periodic report on measures taken to
ensure the safe repatriation of refugees to Burundi and to protect from

vi ol ence refugees living w thin Burundi.”

132. It was so decided .

133. Par agr aph 29 (new paragraph 28)., as anended, was adopt ed

Par agr aph 30 (new par agr aph 29)

134, M. YUTZIS suggested deleting the word “fully” in the penultinmate line
of the paragraph.

135. M. SHERIFIS said that he would prefer the end of the paragraph to read:
“guaranteed in | aw and practice”.

136. Par agr aph 30 (new paragraph 29), as anended, was adopt ed

Par agr aph 31 (new par agr aph 30)

137. Par agraph 31 (new paragraph 30) was adopt ed

Par agr aph 32 (new par agraph 31)

138. M. SHAH proposed that the paragraph should read: “The Committee urges
the Burundi authorities to take all necessary measures, in cooperation wth

t he nei ghbouring countries, to find ways and neans to restore peace and
security in Burundi and in the region.”

139. M. GARVALOV said that by opting for such a wording the Commttee woul d
be making a political statement unrelated to the Convention since there woul d
be no nmention of ethnic conflict.

140. M. RECHETOV proposed that the paragraph under consideration, in which
the word “ethnic” would be deleted fromthe second line, should be conbi ned
with the text proposed by M. Shahi so as to read: “The Conmttee, being
aware that the resolution of the ethnic conflict in Burundi cannot be achieved
wi thout the resolution of the conflict in the Geat Lakes region, urges the

Burundi authorities ...”; the rest of the paragraph woul d be worded as
proposed by M. Shahi.

141. M. AHVADU proposed the deletion of the words “and in the region” at the
end of the text proposed by M. Shahi.

142. It was so decided .




CERDY T SR 1242
page 15

143. The CHAI RMAN suggested adopting the wordi ng proposed by M. Rechetov,
whi ch was a conprom se between the paragraph as drafted and the text of
M. Shahi.

144. It was so decided .

145. Par agraph 32 (new paragraph 31), as orally anended., was adopted

Par agr aph 33 (new par agr aph 32)

146. Par agr aph 33 (new paragraph 32) was adopt ed

Par agr aph 34

147. M. ABOUL-NASR and M. van BOVEN said that it was inappropriate to refer
to the declaration provided for in article 14 of the Convention given the
situation in Burundi.

148. The CHAI RMAN suggested that paragraph 34 shoul d be del et ed.

149. It was so decided .

Par agr aph 35 (new par agr aph 33)

150. Par agraph 35 (new paragraph 33) was adopt ed

151. The Committee's draft concludi ng observations concerning the seventh to

tenth periodic reports of Burundi, as orally amended, were adopted

152. M. AHVADU renarked that the Commttee's concl udi ng observati ons
contained at |least 15 requests for information or additional information which
Burundi, |ike some other African countries, would be virtually unable to neet.

153. The CHAIRMAN assured M. Ahnmadu that his statenent would be reflected in
t he record.

Revi ew of the inplenentation of the Convention in States parties whose reports

are excessively overdue (continued)

Surinanme: draft concluding observations (i n-session docunent, in
English only: CERD U 51/Msc.22 - future CERD ¢ 51/ CRP. 1/ Add. 19)

Paragraph 1

154. Par agraph 1 was adopt ed

Paragraph 2

155. M. de GQOUITES said that it mght be useful to insert a phrase at the
begi nni ng of paragraph 2 reading: “Wile understanding the internal
difficulties faced by the State party, ...”. 1In addition, he proposed the

insertion, after the first sentence, of a sentence that would read: “The



CERD CJ SR 1242
page 16

mul ti-ethnic conposition of the popul ati on and the exi stence of indigenous
communities in Suriname make the inpl enmentation of the Convention particularly
i mportant.”

156. M. GARVALOV suggested that paragraph 1 should be prefaced with a
sentence that would read: “In conformty with the decision of the Commttee
to consider the inplenmentation of the Convention in States parties which have
not yet submtted their initial reports, the Commttee considered the case of
Surinane.” That would nmake it clear that the situation in Surinane had been
examned not in an arbitrary nanner but pursuant to a prior decision of the
Conmittee - approved by the General Assenbly of the United Nations -
concerning States parties which had not yet submtted their initial reports.

157. M. ABOUL-NASR pointed out that other States, including the

United States of America, were as late as Surinane in submtting their initial
reports and that the inplenmentation of the Convention in those countries woul d
therefore have to be exam ned foll owi ng the same procedure.

158. The CHAIRVMAN said that the initial report of the United States of
Anerica was not, like that of Surinane, five years overdue. He suggested

i ncl udi ng the sentence proposed by M. Garvalov in the |letter acconpanying the
text of the Coomittee' s concludi ng observations to be sent to the Covernnent
of Suri nane.

159. It was so decided .

160. The CHAIRVMAN read out the anendnent to paragraph 2 proposed by
M. de CGouttes:

“Wi | e understanding the internal difficulties faced by the State
party, the Committee regretted that Surinane (...) to furnish rel evant
information. The multi-ethnic conposition of the popul ation and the
exi stence of indigenous communities in Suriname nmake the inpl ementation
of the Convention particularly inportant. The Commttee decided (...)
as soon as possible.”

161. Par agraph 2, as anmended, was adopt ed

Par agraph 3

162. M. AHVADU proposed replacing the words “an updated report drafted” by
the words “submitting its initial report” in the last |ine of paragraph 3.

163. Par agraph 3, as anended, was adopt ed

164. The Committee's draft concludi ng observations concerning the
inpl enentation of the Convention in Surinane, as orally anended, were adopted

Quyana

165. Ms. SADQALI , Rapporteur for Quyana, said that the Government of
Quyana had ratified the Convention in March 1977 but had not submitted to the
Commttee either its initial report or its second to tenth periodic reports,




CERD ¢/ SR 1242

page 17
due in 1978 and 1996, respectively. It had, however, submtted a core
docunment on 28 June 1995. CQuyana's failure to submt its periodic reports was
probably due to its shortage of resources. It would perhaps be appropriate to

recommend to the Covernnent of Quyana that it should avail itself of the
t echni cal assi stance offered by the H gh Comm ssioner/Centre for Human R ghts
under the advisory services programre.

166. In 1980, Quyana had a total popul ation of 758,619, nmaking it one of the
| east densely popul ated countries in the world. 1Its popul ati on was conposed
of East Indians (389, 760), Africans (231,330), Portuguese (2,975) and Chi nese
(1,842), as well as Anerindians (39,867), Mxed (83,763) and others (9, 082).

167. Wth regard to education, the adult illiteracy rate (3.6 per cent) was
one of the lowest in the western hem sphere. 1In 1989, the school enrol nent
rate for children aged 6 to 17 years had been 82 per cent. The average
unenpl oynent rate was 13.5 per cent and |ife expectancy was about 70 years.
The infant nortality rate had been estinated at 36.2 per 1,000 live births
over the period 1980-1985. The principal religious conmmunities were
Christians, Muslins and H ndus. The country's official |anguage was Engli sh,
and Hndi, Wdu and certain Anerindi an | anguages were al so used.

168. The Anerindians lived in the vast undevel oped tropical forest regions of
the country. Their standard of |iving was rmuch | ower than that of other
citizens and they could not readily participate in taking decisions affecting
their lands, culture and traditions and the allocation of natural resources.
Arerindian |life was regul ated by the Anerindian Act, |egislation dating from
colonial times and designed to protect the indi genous peoples from
exploitation. The Act gave the Government the power to determ ne who was an
Anerindi an and what was an Amerindi an community, to appoi nt Amerindi an | eaders
and, where necessary, to annul decisions nade by Amerindian councils. That

l egislation was too restrictive and needed to be revised.

169. At a conference in February 1996 sponsored by the Wrld Bank, the

Presi dent of Quyana had promi sed to demarcate the |ands to which Amrerindi ans
were entitled and to protect their resources fromexploitation by foreign and
local investors. It was not known whether the process of demarcation of

i ndi genous | ands had begun. However, somne Anerindi an non-gover nient a

organi zations - the Quyanese Organi zati on of |ndi genous Peopl es and the
Anerindi an Peopl es Association - had certainly declared that the Wrld
Bank- fi nanced construction of roads through tribal |lands had resulted in the
decline of the Yanomani, Napishanma, N nbigara and Macushi communities living
in the area south-west of the Rupunini river. The Governnent had prom sed to
encour age the econom c devel opnent of the Amerindi an popul ati on and had
appointed a Mnister of Arerindian Affairs.

170. Political and social life continued to be narked by | ong-standi ng ethnic
tensions, primarily between Quyanese of African and Indi an descent.

Di scrimnation and exclusion continued to occur. The Indo-Quyanese general ly
opted for a business or professional career. Sonme of themfelt that the
Peopl e' s National Congress, while in power from 1965 to 1992, had established
a pattern of racial discrimnation in favour of the Afro-CQuyanese. The

Af ro- Quyanese were very heavily represented in the civil service and the
defence and police forces. Many of themfelt that they had been the victins



CERD CJ SR 1242
page 18

of measures of racial discrimnation and political persecution since the
comng to power of the People's Progressive Party, which was |argely nmade up
of 1ndo-CQuyanese. However, citizens were free to join any of the 17 political
parties and organi zations active in Quyana. The People's Progressive Party,
the former opposition party, had taken office after the 1992 genera

el ections, which had been considered free and fair by foreign observers.

171. Quyana had becone a republic, within the Comronweal t h,

on 23 February 1970. The new Constitution, promnul gated on 6 Cctober 1980,
guaranteed the fundanental rights of all persons regardl ess of race, sex or
religious or national origin. It would seem however, that the Governnent did
not always nmake sure that its provisions were duly applied. It was not clear
whet her the provisions of the Constitution were consistent with articles 1

and 5 of the Convention. However, the core docunment subnitted in 1995 stated
that the provisions of the Convention could be invoked directly before courts
ot her than admi nistrative tribunals.

172. Suprene executive authority was exercised by the President, who

appoi nted the | eader of the opposition. He also appointed an onbudsman, after
consultation with the mnority leader, for a four-year termof office. The
Constitution guaranteed the i ndependence of the judiciary, a provision that
was general ly respected, but the slowness and inefficiency of the judicia

syst em under mi ned due process. Reform progranmmes designed to inprove | ega
structures and judicial procedures, to upgrade technical facilities and to

i mprove the efficiency of the courts seenmed to be having sone positive
effects.

173. The death penalty had not been abolished and, according to

Ammesty International, at |east four people had been sentenced to death

in 1996 and 19 peopl e renai ned under sentence of death for nurder. However,
no executions had been carried out. Instances of police violence had been
reported. Three people had been killed by the police, four others had died in
custody and 30 cases of police assaults and brutality had been recorded.

In 1995, the police had received 113 conplaints fromcitizens claimng to have
been victins of police brutality. 1In addition, 32 police officers had been
charged and tried for crimnal offences, 5 others had been di sm ssed fromthe
police force and several others had been disciplined. There was reportedly a
mar ked | oss of public confidence in the police force.

174. Concerning the situation of the Amerindi an popul ation, the Commttee
shoul d request the Governnent of Quyana to indicate how far the Amerindi an
popul ation participated in political |life and enjoyed the soci o-econom c
benefits provided by the State, in accordance with the principles set forth in
article 5 of the Convention. Social indicators would be particularly useful
in that regard. The Conmttee should al so request the Government of Quyana to
specify whether the Mnister of Arerindian Affairs was of Anerindian origin

It should, in addition, request the Governnent to provide it with information
on the conposition and terns of reference of the independent comm ssions on
the judiciary, the civil service and the police. Lastly, it should ask the
CGovernnent to indicate whether specific crimnal |egislation prohibiting
raci st organi zati ons had been pronul gated pursuant to article 4 of the



CERDY T SR 1242
page 19

Convention. The Committee should, furthernore, draw the CGovernnent's
attention to its general recommendation X1l (42) on the training of |aw
enforcenent officials in the protection of human rights.

175. The CHAIRVMAN said that, following the review procedure it had adopted in
the case of Surinane and taking into account the report by Ms. Sadiqg Ali on
the inplenmentation of the Convention in Quyana, the Commttee mght wish to
transmt to Quyana a communi cation regarding the subm ssion of that country's
periodic reports and also include, in its annual report to the

CGeneral Assenbly, the text of its concluding observations concerning Quyana.

If it so wished, the Conmittee could consider its draft concl udi ng

observations the follow ng day.

176. It was so decided .

PREVENTI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON, | NCLUDI NG EARLY WARNI NG AND URGENT
PROCEDURES (agenda item4) ( continued)

Papua New Qui hea

177. M. GARVALOV , Rapporteur for Papua New Cuinea, indicated that the State
party had not submtted a new report on the inplementation of the Convention
since 1984, He had based his comments on a variety of sources: the report of
the Secretary-Ceneral of the United Nations on human rights violations in the
Papua New Qui nea island of Bougainville (E/ CN 4/1996/58); the report of the
Speci al Rapporteur on extrajudicial, summary or arbitrary executions on his

m ssion to Bougainville from23 to 28 Qctober 1995 (E ON 4/1996/ 4/ Add. 2); the
report prepared by the same Special Rapporteur pursuant to Comm ssion on Human
Rights resolution 1996/ 74 (E ON 4/1997/60/ Add. 1); the consideration by the
Conmittee, on 12 August 1994, of the inplenentation of the Convention in
Papua New Qui nea (CERD U SR 1060); the Committee's concl udi ng observations
concerni ng Papua New Qui nea, adopted on 14 August 1994 (A/49/18); the

United States Departnent of State Report for 1996 and the

Amesty International Report 1996.

178. In 1994, the Committee had, inter alia, urged the State party to resune
the dialogue with it and to report. In addition, the Conmttee had requested
information fromthe State party about the inplementation of the Convention in
the country as a whol e and about the situation prevailing in Bougainville in
particular. It had al so suggested to the State party that it shoul d cooperate
with the Secretary-CGeneral of the United Nations and avail itself of the
services of the Ofice of the United Nati ons H gh Comm ssioner/ Centre for
Human R ghts with a viewto the preparation of its reports, and had restated
its willingness to accept any request by the Governnment of Papua New Quinea to
provi de techni cal assistance with a viewto re-establishing a dial ogue between
the Governnent and the group controlling Bougainville. There had been no
response to its suggestions and recomrendati ons. However, the Covernnent had
requested the Secretary-Ceneral of the United Nations to send representatives
to provide assistance in a new round of discussions between the Governnent and
the main Bougainville parties. The Government had al so recei ved the Speci al
Rapporteur on extrajudicial, summary or arbitrary executions.



CERD CJ SR 1242
page 20

179. There had been sone najor political devel opnents in Papua New Qui nea

si nce August 1994, when the Committee had | ast considered the inplenmentation
of the Convention in that country. A Bougainville Transitional Governnent
(BTG had been formed in April 1995 to carry out the functions of a provincial
gover nnent pendi ng agreement on the island s constitutional status. The
Bougai nvil | e Revol utionary Arny (BRA) had refused to take up the seats
reserved for it in the Transitional CGovernment (E ON 4/1996/58).

180. In June 1995, the Parliament had passed the new O ganic Law on

Provi nci al Covernments and Local -Level CGovernments, which would come fully
into effect in 1997 (E/ CN 4/1996/58). The Secretary-CGeneral of the

United Nations, following a request by the Prinme Mnister of Papua New Qui nea,
had sent a representative to participate in the Al-Bougainville Leaders'

Tal ks, which had been held in Cairns, Australia, in Decenber 1995 and had been
attended by del egations of the Bougainville Transitional Governnent, headed by
the Premer, M. Mriung, and of the Bougainville InterimGovernnent

(E/ CN 4/1996/ 58, para. 9). The two del egations had committed thensel ves to a
process of dialogue that would permt the achievement of a political

settlement to the conflict and they had expressed their intention to convene a
new round of talks in Bougainville in 1996.

181. The peace process had since been underm ned by a series of incidents.
The returning del egati on of the Bougainville Interim Governnent and the

Bougai nvil l e Revol utionary Arny had reportedly been the target of attacks, and
a nmarked increase had been reported in the nunmber of rebel attacks on the
security forces, civilians and governnent installations. The Governnent of
Papua New Qui nea had yet to communicate to the Secretary-CGeneral whether it
had given fornmal approval to the Cairns agreenents. It had, however, insisted
on the holding of prelimnary neetings with the help of the United Nations in
Papua New Quinea territory, but the InterimGovernnment and the Bougainville
Revol utionary Arny were unwilling to accept for security reasons.

182. On 12 Cctober 1996, M. Mriung had been killed. According to the
Speci al Rapporteur on extrajudicial, sunmary or arbitrary executions, the
United States Departnent of State and Amesty International, other such
executions had been perpetrated and Amesty International reported a nunber of
cases of “di sappearances” in Bougainville. Furthernore, the United States
Departrment of State report referred to numerous cases of discrimnation and

vi ol ence agai nst wonen and the disabled, as well as ethnically notivated
tribal violence.

183. According to the Special Rapporteur on extrajudicial, summary or
arbitrary executions (E CN 4/1996/ 4/ Add. 2, para. 78), the crisis had begun
when it had been perceived by Bougainvilleans that profits fromthe m ning
operations of Bougainville Copper Limted (BCL) should not be distributed
equally to all provinces but should be allocated mainly to the peopl e of
Bougainville. 1In the Special Rapporteur's view, that was an issue to be
settled by the parties concerned, but the Government of Papua New Qui nea
neverthel ess had the duty to safeguard the human rights of all the peopl e of
Papua New Quinea in all circunstances. The Special Rapporteur further stated
that the Bougainville Transitional Governnent seemed to be playing a role

whi ch was acceptable to the people of Bougainville as well as to the
Covernnent of Papua New Quinea, and that it shoul d therefore be supported and



CERD U SR 1242
page 21

encouraged. He concurred with the Special Rapporteur but felt that the
Bougai nville crisis could not be resolved without the agreenent of the
Bougai nvill e I nteri m Governnent and the Bougai nville Revol utionary Arny.

184. The State party needed to report to the Conmttee and to provide it with
i nformati on about the | atest devel opnents concerning the situation in
Bougainville and indicate the steps it was taking to resolve the crisis.

Those two requests woul d have to be included in the Coomttee's concl uding
observations on Papua New Qui nea. The probl em of Bougainville remained

unresol ved and, unfortunately, was becom ng nore acute

185. The CHAIRVAN said he took it that the Conmittee wi shed to keep the
situation in Papua New Qui nea under review.

186. It was so deci ded




